
 

 
Page 1 

 
  

 Rathdrum 
                              City Council Agenda                                  

                           May 11, 2016 
                                         6:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:  City Council Chamber 
  8047 W. Main Street     
  Rathdrum, ID  83858 
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

 

1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 

4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

5) CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  
A) Regular Council Minutes of April 13, 2016 
B)   Regular and Special Bills as presented 
C)   Approval of Western States Rental Agreement 
D)   Approval of Surplus of 1983 Chevrolet Dump Truck 

             

6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 
A) Road Scholar/Road Master Award Presentation 
 

7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  

(No formal action allowed – 3 minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on subsequent 
agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are inappropriate at this time and 
should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent appointment or after tonight’s meeting, 
if time permitting. Repeated comments of the same or similar topic will be considered out of 
order and not allowed. 
 
 



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

 
 

8) PUBLIC HEARINGS 
  

9) OLD BUSINESS 
A) Approval of contract with Chris Hansen for additional clean-up for Rathdrum Mountain 
B) Agreement between the Lakeland School District and the City of Rathdrum for Employment 
 of a School Resource Officer. 
C) Update on roof of City Hall Building 

 

10) NEW BUSINESS  
A)   Appointment of City Administrator 
B)   Draft Audit FY14-15 Financials 

 
11) STAFF REPORTS 

 Finance Reporting 

 Park and Recreation Reporting 

 Police Reporting 

 Public Works Reporting 
 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 

A) Appointment of Mark Gorton to the Parks & Recreation Commission 
B) Appointment of Tim Wirth to the Impact Fee Committee 
 

13) EXECUTIVE SESSION: I.C. 74-206 (1) (a) To consider hiring a public officer, employee, staff 
member or individual agent, wherein the respective qualities of individuals are to be evaluated in 
order to fill a particular vacancy or need. This paragraph does not apply to filling a vacancy in an 
elective office or deliberations about staffing needs in general; 

 

14) COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

15) ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities will be 

provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 



1 
 

City of Rathdrum Council Meeting                                                                         

 

Executive Agenda Summary  

TO:   Mayor Vic Holmes 
   Council President Fred Meckel  
   Councilors Paula Laws, Mark Worthen and Debbie Holmes 

FROM:  Melissa Taylor, Finance Director/Treasurer  

CC:   Department Heads 

5) Consent Calendar 

A) Regular Council Minutes of April 13, 2016- For your review 

B) Regular & Special Bills- For your review 

C) Approval of Western States Rental- Public Works wants to rent a top soil screener for the 
stockpile of dirt behind the Public Works shop on Boekel Rd. 

D) Approval of Surplus of Public Works Equipment- See memo in packet.  

6) Ceremonies & Reports 

Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) is presenting Shane Moyer with his Road Scholar 
Certification.  He has been working to achieve this certification for the last two years. 

7) Visitors Comments 

8) Public Hearings 

9) Old Business 

A) Approval of contract with Chris Hansen for additional cleaning of Mountain after wind 
storm 
                                                                                                                                                          

City Forrester Chris Hansen has proposed a post-harvest cleanup of Rathdrum Mountain.  These 
activities will include burning slash piles, removing wind storm damaged trees, identifying 
places that require replanting and removing ladder fuels.  
 

May 11, 2016 



2 
 

B) Agreement between the Lakeland School District and the City of Rathdrum for 
 Employment of School Resource Officer.   

 
The SRO Agreement stated that the SRO officer will be a City of Rathdrum employee and under 
the direct supervision of the Police Chief.  This officer will primarily work in the district schools 
while providing support as needed to City.  This agreement is for one year and states that the 
school district will pay $35,000 towards the officer’s salary with the City paying the remainder.  
                                                                                                                                                         

C)  Update on the roof for the City Hall Building 
 
Plans for reconstructing the roof at City Hall are underway with the Roofing and HVAC 
contractors coordinating the removal of the HVAC units and roof repair. The plan consists of 
adding a 9-0 inch slope built of insulating foam, removing the scuppers and filling in the low 
spots.  This reconstruction includes elevating the existing curbing, relocating the gas lines, 
installing a new roof membrane and reinstalling the HVAC units.   
 

10) New Business 

A) Appointment of New City Administrator 
                                                                                                                                                          

City Staff and the Mayor have met with Mr. Leon Duce introducing him to community leaders 
and local citizens.  If the appointment is approved by City Council Mr. Duce will begin 
employment on June 1, 2016. 
 

B)  Draft Audit FY14-15 Financials 
 

Anderson Brothers have completed the FY14-15 draft financial statements.  They will be 
provided at the Council Meeting for you to look over.  The final presentation is scheduled for 
June 8th Council Meeting.   
 

11) Staff Reports 

A) Finance Department- See report in packet 

B) Parks & Recreation- See report in packet 

C) Police Department- See report in packet 

D) Public Works- See report in packet  

12) Mayors Report/Appointments 

A)  Appointment of Mark Gorton to the Park and Recreation Commission- see packet for info. 

B)  Appointment of Tim Wirth to the Impact Fee Committee 

13) Council Reports                                   

14) Adjourn 



   CALENDAR  
May – 2016 

 
 

 

May 11  6:00 pm  Council Meeting 

May 12  10:30 am  Senior Center Meeting 

May 12  1:30 pm  KMPO  

May 18  6:00 pm  Planning & Zoning Commission 

May 19  12:00 pm  Chamber Luncheon 

May 24  8:00 am  KCATT 

May 24              5:30 pm  Economic Development 

May 24  6:00 pm  Park & Recreation Commission 

May 25   5:00 pm  Cemetery Board 

June 1  6:00 pm  Budget Work Session 

June 8  6:00 pm  Council Meeting/Budget Work Session 

June 7  7:00 am   Jobs Plus  

June 10  8:00 am  Council Payday 

                            

 

 

 

 

"The world's favorite season is the spring.  
All things seem possible in May." 

-  Edwin Way Teale 



 

	 Page	1 
	

 Rathdrum 
                               City Council Minutes                        

                                    April 13, 2016 
                                                 6:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:   City Council Chamber 
    8047 W. Main Street         
    Rathdrum, ID  83858 
    (208) 687‐0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME‐PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES‐ Thank You. 
 

 

1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 

Meeting called to order by Mayor Holmes at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT:                           Councilor Meckel, Councilor Laws, Councilor Holmes, Councilor 

Worthen and Mayor Holmes. 
       ABSENT:  None 
       STAFF:  City Engineer/Public Works Director Jump, City Clerk Halligan, 

Finance Director/Treasurer Taylor, City Planner Armes, Park & 
Rec Director Singer, Police Chief Fuhr and City Attorney Cafferty. 

 
4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 
5) CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A)  Regular Council Minutes of March 09, 2016 
B)   Regular and Special Bills as presented 
C)   Amendment to Prairie Sky Development Agreement 
D)   Approval of Surplus of Police Department and Water Department Equipment 
 



 

	 Page	2 
	

           Finance Director Taylor gave a brief overview of the Consent Calendar.   
 

           Councilor Laws made a MOTION to approve the consent calendar as presented. 
Motion seconded by Councilor Holmes. 
   

             AYES:  Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Holmes  
                                                   Councilor Worthen 
  Councilor Meckel 
             NAYES:  None 
             ABSENT:  None  
 
             Motion Passed by majority. 
             
6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 
 

Mayor Holmes introduced Heather Fessler, the new Deputy Clerk/Utility Specialist to the 
Council. 
 

7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  
(No formal action allowed – 3 minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 
inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 
 
Chris Fresh from Kootenai County Search & Rescue stated that on April 24th they will be 
conducting a training exercise in the City.  The Kootenai County Volunteer and Rescue unit 
will be doing an urban search. 
 
Mr. Fresh stated that we just wanted to make you aware, we will be handing out fliers to 
the community saying that we will be conducting an exercise, also going door to door. 
 
John Hartung 
Community Library Network 
 
Mr. Hartung discussed the Physical Plant Levy Costs to upgrade seven library facilities that 
is on the ballot for May 17, 2016. 
 
I also want to introduce Linda Mahon, the new manager of the Rathdrum Library. 
 

8) PUBLIC HEARINGS 
   



 

	 Page	3 
	

9) OLD BUSINESS 
 

 
 

10)  NEW BUSINESS   
 

A)  Discussion of Urban Renewal District 
 
             City Planner Armes gave a presentation on the Urban Renewal District.   

 
The Rathdrum Economic Development Committee has been meeting over the last 2 
years researching Urban Renewal Agency/Districts. After much discussion with 
different groups and individuals who have experience with Urban Renewal District’s, 
the Committee asked Staff to prepare a presentation to the City Council to see if the 
City Council would entertain moving forward towards creating an Urban Renewal 
Agency/District for the City of Rathdrum.     
 
Mayor Holmes asked the Council how they felt in regards to Urban Renewal      
Development forming in our district. 
 
Council asked to table until they can have a joint meeting with the Economic 
Development Committee.        
 

B)   Approval of the City Administrator position and job description 
 
Financial Director/Treasurer Taylor gave a brief presentation on the City 
Administrator job description. 
 
Council made a few suggested edits and changes to the job description. 
 
Councilor Holmes made a MOTION to approve the City Administrator job description 
with the changes that we mentioned with a Pay grade 19.  Motion seconded by 
Councilor Worthen. 

   
             AYES:  Councilor Holmes 
                                                   Councilor Worthen  
  Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Meckel 
             NAYES:  None 

       ABSENT:  None 
              

       Motion Passed by majority 
  



 

	 Page	4 
	

C) Approval for the Welcome Banners for Main Street       
 
Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to approve the Rathdrum Street Banner design and 
quote and to authorize the City Council to expend $2,000.00 from their contingency 
fund not to exceed $2,000.00 for addition banners.  Motion seconded by Councilor 
Laws. 

   
            AYES:  Councilor Meckel 
                                                   Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Worthen 
  Councilor Holmes 
            NAYES:  None 

      ABSENT:  None 
              

      Motion Passed by majority 
 
D) Approval of School Resource Officer position and job description 
 

Police Chief gave a presentation on the position for the school resource officer.   
 
With the recent passing of the Lakeland School Levy, I would like to officially request to 
add a new police officer position to the Rathdrum Police Department to hire a School 
Resource Officer. 
 
My request would be to hire a new officer in May of 2016, which would give us ample 
time to train that new officer to fill the vacated position left by an officer that is 
assigned as the SRO. 
 
I have met with Lakeland SD administration and have been told that the school will 
fund $35,000.00 of the SRO’s total cost.  The amount budgeted by the SD would 
roughly cover 55% of the total wages for the position. 
 
If you approve the position and the job description tonight, I would like to advertise for 
the position tomorrow. 
 

            Councilor Worthen made a MOTION to approve the school resource officer position in 
coordination with the school district and we also approve the job description as has 
been explained to us tonight.   Motion seconded by Councilor Laws. 

   
            AYES:  Councilor Worthen 
                                                   Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Meckel  
                                                   Councilor Holmes    



 

	 Page	5 
	

            NAYES:  None 
      ABSENT:  None 

              
            Motion Passed by majority 

 
E) Approval of Generator Maintenance Agreement with Western States 
 

            Councilor Holmes made a MOTION to approve the Generator Maintenance Agreement 
with Western States.  Motion seconded by Councilor Worthen. 

   
            AYES:  Councilor Holmes  
                                                   Councilor Worthen  
  Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Meckel 
            NAYES:  None 

      ABSENT:  None 
              

      Motion Passed by majority 
 
F) Approval of rental agreement with Rowand Machinery for Street Sweeper 

 
Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to approve the street sweeper lease from Rowand 
Machinery.  Motion seconded by Councilor Laws. 

   
            AYES:  Councilor Meckel 
                                                   Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Worthen 
  Councilor Holmes 
            NAYES:  None 

      ABSENT:  None 
              

      Motion Passed by majority 
 

G) Consideration task order No. 16‐01 with Welch Comer & Associates for New Rathdrum 
Water Production well – Bid Phase Services and Construction phase services 

 
The agreement between the City of Rathdrum and Welch‐Comer & 
Associates, addresses the following items: 

 Bid Phase Services for New Test Well 

 Bid Phase Services for New Well Building 

 Construction Phase Services for New Test Well 

 Construction Phase Services for New Well Building 



 

	 Page	6 
	

 Post‐Construction Phase Services for New Well Building and Well Equipment 

 Legal Description for New Well Parcel 
 

 We are here tonight to ask the City Council approve this agreement. We will not issue 
Notice to Proceed for this agreement until the results are received for the test well. 

 
            Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to approve the water well bid phase and 

construction with Welch Comer and Associates and authorize the Mayor to sign all 
documentation.  Motion seconded by Councilor Laws. 

   
            AYES:  Councilor Meckel 
                                                   Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Worthen 
  Councilor Holmes 
            NAYES:  None 

      ABSENT:  None 
              

      Motion Passed by majority 
 
H) Consider agreement with HMH Engineering for Community Choices Project – School 

Zone Flashing RRFB Crosswalk Signs 
 

We authorized Traffic Safety Supply Company on a materials‐only 
contract for 5 new sets of RRFB Solar‐Powered Flashing School‐Zone Crosswalk 
signs. This contract is associated with a Community Choices grant that the City of 
Rathdrum was awarded in 2015. The Community Choices program is a federal‐aid 
program and is administered by ITD. 
 
With the materials‐only contract, the City was going to use its own forces to install the 
signs since we have successfully installed 2 previous sets of these same sign 
systems. Since federal aid is involved, we are required to have our work inspected 
by a ITD‐certified inspector. Therefore, we are herein providing an agreement with 
HMH Engineering to provide these services. We are seeking Council's approval of 
the agreement. 

 
            Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to approve the School Zone Flashing RRFB signs 

with the agreement between HMH LLC and the City of Rathdrum, not to exceed 
$5,000.00 contingent on the Attorney’s review.  Motion seconded by Councilor Laws. 

   
             AYES:  Councilor Meckel 
                                                   Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Worthen 
  Councilor Holmes 



 

	 Page	7 
	

            NAYES:  None 
      ABSENT:  None 

              
      Motion Passed by majority 
 
I) Approval of contract with Chris Hansen for additional cleaning of the Mountain after 

the wind storm 
 

Chris Hansen, Hansen Timber Management gave a brief presentation on some of the 
additional cleaning and planting he would like to do up on Rathdrum Mountain. 
 
Council asked to have this put on the next council meeting. 

 
J) Approval of Contact with Jerry Mason in regards to Impact Fees 

 
Mayor Holmes stated that we never cancelled the five year contract we have with 
Jerry Mason.  So there is no real need to sign another contract. 

             
K) Set the date for the Budget Public Hearing 

 
Financial Director/Treasurer Taylor stated that by the end of this month we need 
notify the County of the date of our Public Hearing as of April 29th, 2016.  So in looking 
at the calendar, what I am looking at is August 17th at 6:00 p.m. if that will work for the 
Mayor and Council. 
 
 Councilor Law made a MOTION to set the Public Hearing for August 17th, 2016 at 6:00 
p.m.  Motion seconded by Councilor Meckel. 

 
             AYES:  Councilor Laws  
                                                   Councilor Meckel 
  Councilor Worthen 
  Councilor Holmes 
             NAYES:  None 

       ABSENT:  None 
              

       Motion Passed by majority 
 
11) STAFF REPORTS 
 

 Finance Reporting 
 
Nothing 

 



 

	 Page	8 
	

 Park and Recreation Reporting 
 

Nothing 
 

 Police Reporting 
 

Nothing 
 

 Public Works Reporting 
 

 We are working on the Water Ordinance  

 We are working on the water well 

 The big thing we are working on right now is our Street rehabilitation work.  
 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 
 

 Child Abuse Prevention Proclamation  
 
Mayor Holmes stated that I will be delivering the Proclamation on May 21st,, 2016 
at the Head Start down on Kimo Court. 
  

 Appointment for Citizen Development Advisory Committee 
 

Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to approve the Traffic Circulation Impact fee 
memo with the appointments of Larry Clark, Bob Jones, Ron Schmidt, Jim Small, 
Kris Storey and George Thayer.   Motion seconded by Councilor Laws. 

     
Councilor Meckel amended the motion to say the Impact Fee Advisory Committee.  
Motion seconded by Councilor Holmes. 

 
             AYES:  Councilor Meckel  

                                                   Councilor Holmes 
  Councilor Worthen 
  Councilor Laws 

             NAYES:  None 
        ABSENT:  None 

              
              Motion Passed by majority 
 

13) COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

Councilor Meckel  



 

	 Page	9 
	

 KMPO will meet tomorrow at 1:00 p.m.   

 KMPO is focusing on taking the Weigh station on I90 and looking at putting it on 
the border of Idaho and Washington. 

 
14) ADJOURN 

 
 Meeting adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 
 
 

 
_____________________________________ 

                                                                                          Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24‐hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 















f:\public works\shared files\ricohscans\utility division\memo kj-cc screen - 5.5.16.docx 

Memo 
To:   Rathdrum City Council 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  May 5, 2016 

Re:  Lease Agreement – Soil Screen 

Rathdrum Public Works is seeking to lease a portable soil screener from Western 
States.  We anticipate renting this screener for 1-to-3 weeks. 
 
The proposed rental agreement is attached. 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 







  
 

 
  

 

To: Mayor and Council  

From: City Clerk Sherri L Halligan 

Date: May 11, 2016 

Re: City Property Surplus 

 
 
 

Mayor & Council: 
 

 The Clerk’s Office would like the following items listed to be declared as surplus.  
 

Public Works Department  
 

The public department would like to surplus: 

 1983 Chevrolet Dump Truck – Vin #1GBHC34MXDV104761 
 

 

 

 Sincerely, 

                                                                          

Sherri L Halligan 
City Clerk 
City of Rathdrum                                                                                         

 

CITY OF RATHDRUM   
CLERKS OFFICE 



f:\public works\shared files\ricohscans\parks\mountain\memo kj-cc rathdrum mountain clean-up - 5.5.16.docx 

Memo 
To:   Rathdrum City Council 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  May 5, 2016 

Re:  Rathdrum Mountain - Post Harvest Restoration & Clean-up 

At the April 2016 City Council meeting, the City's Forester, Chris Hansen of Hansen 
Timber Management, provided an update with regards to last summer's/fall's timber 
harvest and provided some general work items which remain as a result of the post-
harvest.  For the Rathdrum City Council's consideration, I'm attaching an agreement 
with Hansen Timber Management.  The scope of work is identified in Exhibit A. 
 
In total, we anticipate the post-harvest work to be approximately $25,000.  The 
attached agreement is not-to-exceed $14,000.  A forthcoming agreement will pertain 
to sub-contracted excavator work which will complement Hansen's work. 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 























f:\public works\shared files\ricohscans\city hall\memo kj-cc city hall update - 5.5.16.docx 

Memo 
To:   Rathdrum City Council 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  May 5, 2016 

Re:  City Hall Repair Work - Report 

In both the March '16 and April '16 City Council meetings, we provided a report 
regarding the ongoing repairs being made to City Hall.  The repair work has been 
attributed to water leaks.  The leaking roof has caused damage to different areas of 
City Hall.  As you are aware, the Rathdrum Building Inspector, Sherman Hunter, has 
installed a structural support member (floor beam) in the basement of City Hall.  The 
structural work is complete; however, there is remaining renovation work needs to be 
completed. 
 
As we reported, we were actively seeking to make roof repairs.  Considering that City 
Council was aware of our intentions and had asked Mayor Holmes to continue with 
making these repairs to City Hall, the City entered into agreement with Granite 
Enterprises on 4.21.16.  These improvements will pitch the roof such that water will 
runoff directly into the existing gutter system.  A new roof membrane will be installed. 
 
In addition to this agreement with Granite Enterprises, we (via a separate contract 
with SMK) are also going to temporarily relocate the roof-mounted air conditioning 
units such that roof repairs can be completed.  This work will be in addition to the 
attached contract ($18,230).  In total, we anticipate that the cost of this repair work 
will be $30,000 to $35,000. 
 
We are asking to the Rathdrum City Council to ratify the attached agreement with 
Granite Enterprises and authorize Mayor Holmes to negotiate and execute a future 
agreement for the relocation work of the air conditioner units. 
 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 



Memo KJ-CC City Hall Update - 5.5.16 

Currently, we've asked SMK to work directly with Granite Enterprises.  Once SMK 
removes the air conditioning units (to be stored at the Rathdrum Public Works shop), 
Granite Enterprise can then mobilize and begin demolition activities. 

 







1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

April/May 2016 

Finance & Administration 

 

CURRENT ACTIVITY 

 

1. New Utility Accounts – 18 – Closed  - 19 

2. Cemetery –  Burials - 3 

3. Normal Monthly Activity (Utility Bills/Customer 

Service/Payables/Payroll/General Ledger) 

4. Hired Deputy City Clerk/Utility Billing Specialist 

5. Training of new Deputy City Clerk/Utility Billing Specialist 

6. Website & Facebook updates 

7. Budget meeting preparation 

8. Attended County Budget & Levy Training 

9. Attended AIC Spring Academy Training 

10. Attended Municipal Finance Training 

11. Council meeting preparation 

12. Department Head Meeting & Staff Meeting Coordination 

13. Coordinated City Administrator Candidate Travel & Introduction 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 



   Mayor and City Council Report 
For Regular Meeting on May 11, 2016 

 
RATHDRUM PARKS, RECREATION, & CEMETERY DEPARTMENT 

Eric Singer, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
 

Recreation Programs through May 6th, 2016       

 Spring Soccer Report.  Spring Soccer has gone very well.  Our last weekend will be this Saturday on 
May 21st.   

 Staff is now preparing for the Youth Fishing Derby.  The Fishing Derby will be on Saturday June 11th at 
City Park.   

 Mayor’s Cup Golf Tournament Update.  Staff is in the process of collecting prizes and sponsorships.  
We are starting to get more and more registrations.  We are proud to say that we have received a lot 
of support from the community for this great event and fundraiser.   Reminder that all proceeds will 
go to benefit the new North Idaho College Career and Technical Center in Rathdrum.  Tournament is 
Saturday May 21st at Twin Lakes Village Golf Course.    

 
Community Events 

 Staff has been contemplating whether or not to take full control of the Rathdrum Concert Series 
and cut ties with Hand Shake Productions.  Staff has done some research and it appears that 
some costs could be cut and there could be less strain on sponsors if the concert series was 
produced and promoted within by city staff.    

 Staff has begun preparing for the 2016 Youth Fishing Derby.  The Fishing Derby will be on 
Saturday June 11th at City Park.  Staff has been in touch with Idaho Fish and Game and prizes and 
awards are starting to be collected.  

 
Park Activities 

 Staff has taken several park reservations for the summer.  

 New banners for Main Street have been ordered and should be installed within the next 
couple of weeks. 

 Parks seasonal workers are now on board and the Parks staff is getting caught back up on Park 
Maintenance.  

 Lions Club will likely be volunteering to help build the new picnic shelter at Majestic Park.  
Staff attended the last Lions Club Business Meeting and presented them with the idea and it 
was a very well received idea.   

 
Cemetery 

 The New Niche Wall is scheduled to be delivered tomorrow (May 12th).  Staff has been getting 
the site ready for delivery.   

 
Parks and Recreation Commission 

 Staff would like to Introduce Mark Gorton as our new Parks and Recreation Commissioner. 
 
Administration 

Nothing to Report 



 

i:\council packets\fy15-16\may\doc\public works staff report 5.2.16.docx 

P
ag

e1
 

 
PUBLIC WORK'S STAFF REPORT 

Public Works Department  

May 2, 2016 
 

 
1. Public Projects 

a. Sewer/Water Master Plans and Policy Update: The City Council adopted the 
Water System Master Plan, Sanitary Sewer Master Plan and Basic Utility 
Policies.  With legal staff input, we are in the process of reviewing and revising 
our city ordinances so that they better reflect our expectations.  City Staff has 
prepared a draft water system ordinance.  Legal staff has provided comments to 
the draft ordinance.  Standard Details for water infrastructure have been drafted 
and have been circulated for internal staff review.   

b. BNSF Railway - 2nd set of Tracks:  On 11.6.2014, ITD, BNSF, Kootenai County 
Sheriff's Department and the City of Rathdrum met to discuss BNSF Railway 
crossing at Mill Street and the future paralleling set of tracks through Rathdrum.  
BSNF has asked that Rathdrum identify our water main crossings, as BNSF will 
require us to extend the protective steel casing under the limits of the new 
proposed set of rail.  We have pot-holed 4 of the 5 locations and are compiling 
our collection information so that we can provide it to BNSF.  BNSF has informed 
us that any water line casing extensions need to be completed by the end of 
2015.  We anticipate that there is 1 water main crossing which will need to be 
modified. 

  BNSF mentioned their intentions of making improvements to SH53 (NB right-turn 
lane extension, SB left-turn lane extension, extension of NB travel lane).  The 
placement of the 2nd set of tracks, thru the Mill Street intersection, should close 
Mill Street for 1-day (per BNSF).  As recently as September 2015, BNSF advised 
us that they intend to start construction on the 2nd set of tracks in early 2016.  
However, others have indicated that BNSF's project will not take place until 2018. 

      c. New Water Production Well:  United Crown Pump & Drilling has drilled the test 
well and completed the test pumping.  Water quality tests were performed by 
Accurate Testing Labs.  The results of the water quality samples were found to 
be within acceptable limits for the items tested.  We are going to continue with 
advancing the construction of the production well, well building and water 
transmission main extension.  We will soon be contacting an appraiser(s) to 
determine the value of the 1-acre parcel and water main easements which are to 
be donated by Don Arestad and George Thayer. 

d. State Highway 41 Improvements:  in the spring/summer 2016, ITD will be 
conducting a significant amount of work on SH41, from SH53 to Spirit Lake.  The 
work will include: rubblize the existing asphalt, cement-treat the crushed asphalt 
and re-compact, incidental AC pavement widening, improving turn bays, tree 
removal to accommodate necessary intersection sight distance improvements 
and pavement resurfacing.  ITD has also indicated that they intend re-striping the 
travel lanes as 11-ft wide travel lanes (currently 12-ft wide).  ITD conducted a pre-
construction meeting on 4.27.16. 

Public Works – Staff Projects 
a. City-Wide Transportation Plan:  The consultant has developed the sub-network 

model of Rathdrum's roadway system.  DEA has completed a draft of the 2010 
sub-network model (existing conditions) and the development of the 2030 sub-
network model. DEA has begun work on the scope of work in their recent 
supplemental agreement. 

 



 

i:\council packets\fy15-16\may\doc\public works staff report 5.2.16.docx 

P
ag

e2
 

b. 2016 Street Rehabilitation Program:   
We have prepared construction plans and specifications for our annual street 
rehabilitation program.  This project was recently publicly-advertised.  The bid 
opening is slated for 5.18.16.  The roadways & pathways that we are seeking to 
rehabilitate are: 

 2nd Street - between McCartney Street and Mill Street 

 Main Street sidewalk replacement - between MountainView High School 
and Washington Street 

 McCartney Street asphalt pavement overlay - between BSNR Railway 
and 4th Street 

 Montana Street asphalt pavement overlay - between SH41 and Cassia 
Street 

 Boekel Road Pathway Extension - frontage of House of Prayer Church 

 Meyer Road Pathway Extension - from Tombstone Street to Park Rose 
Estates Subdivision 

c. Flashing Pedestrian School Zone Signs:  The 5 sets of RRFB Solar-Powered 
Flashing School-Zone Crosswalk signs were received from Traffic Safety Supply 
Company on 4.18.2016.  We are hoping to begin construction of the foundations 
for each sign by mid-to-late May. 

d. Updates to Development Impact Fee Program:  we are preparing to begin the 
updating process for the City's Circulation (Traffic), Parks and Police Impact Fees 
in April.  It is our intentions to be complete with these efforts and present final 
recommendations to the Rathdrum City Council in August 2016. 

2. Site Plans/Subdivision Development 

a. Rathdrum Bible Church Addition: Construction ongoing.  

b. Timber Landings (McGovern Annexation):  Construction plans were approved 
on 11/12/15 and construction of the first phase is ongoing. Final Plat Application 
was submitted on 11.19.15. After further review the Applicant is going to resubmit 
new plans, Staff is currently waiting. 

c. STEM Charter School:  Construction for site expansion is substantially complete 
until spring.  A “Site Improvement Agreement for Provisional Certificate of 
Occupancy” was executed with the owners providing appropriate performance 
surety for the remaining site work to be completed by 6/30/15.  STEM added 
additional parking paving and landscaping to the site in summer 2015 and 
requested inspection 11/5/15.  A small list of items remain to be completed from 
both landscape plans to occur in spring 2016.  Staff is currently in contact with 
STEM’s Engineer to discuss remaining items that need to be completed.  Staff 
also recently met with STEM representatives on 2/26/16 regarding a proposed 
2016 Classroom expansion project which will add 4 classrooms on the southwest 
side of 2014 Admin/classroom building.   

d. Weaver Industries:  We conducted a pre-application meeting on 3/4/14 for this 
expansion project, which includes a new 8,800 SFT building. Plans have been 
submitted, a review letter and redlines to site plan have been picked up by Paul 
Matthews on 4/11/14. Staff is currently waiting for a response. 

e. Marks Marine:  A site plan was approved 9/2/14 for two buildings to be added on 
site for boat storage and is still under construction at this time. Staff completed a 
final site inspection on 2/23/16 for Marks Marine; a few items remain to be 
completed prior to issuing a Certificate of Occupancy. 

f. NIC:  Construction of site/street development is underway. 

g. Corbin Crossing South:  Rathdrum City Council approved a preliminary plat on 
1.13.16.  The Development Agreement and Construction Improvement Agreement 
have been executed.  Development plans have been approved for the 1st Phase, 
a pre-construction meeting held on 4.25.16 and construction is underway. 



 

i:\council packets\fy15-16\may\doc\public works staff report 5.2.16.docx 

P
ag

e3
 

h. Prairie Sky - Phases 2, 3, 4 & 5:  Applicant’s Engineer submitted the preliminary 
plat for review on 9.25.15. Staff has presented this to both Planning & Zoning 
Commission (favorable recommendation) and City Council (approved).  The 
Amended Development Agreement has been executed.  Construction drawings 
have been reviewed and a redline copies have been given to the Applicant for 
review.  

i. Trading Post:  Site development plans were approved on 10.8.15 and a pre-
construction meeting was held on 3/3/16.  Construction is underway.  

j. ACE Hardware:  Applicant has executed a Provisional Certificate of Occupancy 
for the remainder items which need to be completed. 

 







f:\public works\shared files\ricohscans\traffic impact fee study - 2016\memo kj-council - impact fee committee - 5.5.16.docx 

Memo 
To:   City Council 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  May 5, 2016 

Re:  Traffic/Circulation Impact Fees 

 

We had 1 member rescind their appointment to the Citizen Development Advisory 
Committee.   

We are herein seeking Rathdrum City Council's confirmation of Mayor Holmes' 
recommendation of Tim Wirth to the Citizen Development Advisory Committee. 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 


	01a Council Agenda
	01b Rathdrum Agenda Notes
	01c May Calendar
	05a Council Minutes 04-13-16
	05b May Bills
	05c Western States Screener Agreement
	05d City Surplus Memo
	09a Rathdrum Mountain Clean-Up Agreement
	09b SRO Officer Agreement with Lakeland School District
	09c City Hall Roof Update
	11a Finance Report
	11b Parks & Recreation Staff Report
	11d Public Works Staff Report
	12a Appointed Position Application - Mark Gorton
	12b Impact Fee Committee



